MAKURDI COLLEGE OF HEALTH AND MEDICAL LABORATORY SCIENCE

THE STUDENT UNION CONSTITUTION

PREAMBLE

The student of the Makurdi College of Health and Medical Laboratory Science haven firmly resolved to perpetuate the existence and growth of the Student Union and to promote our general welfare within a healthy and progressive college community;

In order to provide the means by which we may effectively utilize the educational and cultural resources of the College of Health and Medical laboratory science for the encouragement of a healthy students/staff relationship and particularly for unity and brotherly co-existence among students;

Also, to contribute our quota to the progress, dignity and emancipation of our fatherland and humanity at large.

DO HEREBY make, enact, and give to ourselves the following Constitution:

ARTICLE 1

SUPREMACY OF THE CONSTITUTION

The Constitution is the supreme document of the Student Union of Makurdi College its provisions shall be binding on the representatives and students of the Union.

The Student Union shall not be governed nor shall any person or group of persons take control of the union except in accordance with the provisions of this Constitution.

NAME

2.1. The name of the union shall be Makurdi College of Health and Medical Laboratory Science Student Union here in after referred to as "The Makurdi College Student Union."

ARTICLE 3

FUNDAMENTAL OBJECTIVES

3.1. To promote and encourage the socio-cultural and intellectual interests of students.

3.2. To act as the representative of students.

3.3. To maintain good relationship and to be the recognized liaison between students and the College authorities.

3.4. To promote and protect the educational interests and welfare of students and College

3.5. To protect/secure the fundamental rights and privileges of students and College

3.6. To assist other recognized clubs, organizations, etc. within the Student Union.

3.7. To promote/protect the good name of the Makurdi College of Health and Medical Laboratory Science at all times.

ARTICLE 4

STUDENTSHIP/PATRONS & MATRONS

4.1. All registered students of the Makurdi College shall be members provided such a student has duly registered as a student with the college and paid the prescribed College fees (Tuition fees to the College) and student Union dues to the Union.

4.2. Honorary studentship shall be conferred on persons who are not, and have never been students of the college, who by the interest they have shown in the affairs of the Union are deemed fit for the honor. This shall be on the recommendation of the Unions Executive Council and approved by them. He/she cannot vote or be voted in any office

4.3. Life studentship shall be conferred on the students of the Union who have been outstanding in their service to the Union, college and the Society. This shall be on the recommendation of the Executive Council and approved. He/she cannot vote or be voted in any office

4.4. All ordinary students of the Union shall pay an annual studentship fee of two thousand naira ($\mathbb{N}2000$) only or such amount that shall be determined or approved from time to time.

4.5. There shall be one each of grand patron, patron and matron of the Union. The grand patron, patron and matron shall be elected on the recommendation of the Union's Executive Council and approved.

ARTICLE 5

RIGHTS AND PRIVILEGES OF STUDENTS

5.1. All registered students are entitled to all the rights and freedoms as set out in this Article and the extant laws of the Federal Republic of Nigeria irrespective of race, gender, age, religion, nationality, and ethnicity provided that, in enjoying such rights, the rights of other people are not infringed upon.

5.2. Students shall have the right to the Union's Constitution on which is available for free download from the College Portal

5.3. Students shall have equal privilege of using the facilities and services of the Union.

5.4. Students shall have the right/freedom to seek information from the body of the union.

5.5. Students shall have the right to freedom of expression and opinion.

5.6. Students shall have the right to freedom of peaceful association.

5.7. Students shall have the right to report all cases of harassment, abuse and intimidation from fellow students to the officers of the Union.

5.8. Students shall have the right to vote and be voted for at the Union's Elections, except otherwise stated in this Constitution and subject to Electoral Guidelines.

5.9. Students shall have the right to petition any officer of the Union who abuses his/her office and power. This petition shall be forwarded to the Union's Executive council and the Dean of Student Affairs

ARTICLE 6

GOVERNANCE OF THE UNION

The authority and powers of the union shall be vested in, and exercised by the Executive Council.

THE EXECUTIVE COUNCIL

THE JUDICIAL COUNCIL or JUDICIARY

A.THE EXECUTIVE COUNCIL

6.1. **COMPOSITION**: the Executive Council shall consist of the President, Vice President, General Secretary, Assistant General Secretary, Financial Secretary, Treasurer, Director of Social, Public Relations Officer I, Public Relations Officer II and Auditor.

6.2. Officers of the Executive Council shall be elected on the basis of individual candidacy by all students of the Union in a general election of the Congress.

6.3. QUORUM

6.3.1. For any meeting of the Executive Council a quorum shall be formed when there are two third students of the Council present at the meeting.

6.3.2. No motion shall be passed unless by a two third majority of students present.

B. DUTIES OF OFFICERS

6.4. THE PRESIDENT

The President shall:

6.4.1. Be the Chief Executive Officer and head of the Union

6.4.2. Be responsible for the overall coordination of the activities and efficient functioning of the Union.

6.4.3. Have power to form committees to enhance the proper running of the Union, subject to the ratification by two/third majority of the Executive.

6.4.4. Summon, through the Secretary, all meetings of the Executive Council and the congress meeting over which he shall preside.

6.4.6. Be a signatory to the Unions Account.

6.4.7. Co-ordinate all National Association of Nigeria Students (NANS)-related activities on campus.

6.4.8. Present the Annual Budget of the Union to the Dean of student affairs for approval without which no money is to be spent.

6.5. VICE PRESIDENT

The Vice President shall:

6.5.1. Assist and advice the President in all his/her official duties and shall act in the absence or incapacitation of the President.

6.5.2. Carry out such other activities and functions that may be delegated to him/her from time to time by the President.

6.5.3. Automatically become the President if the post becomes vacant before the expiration of tenure of the President.

6.5.4. Be the Chairman/Chairperson of the Year One (1) Orientation Planning Committee.

6.5.5. Be in charge of the academic welfare of the students.

6.6. GENERAL SECRETARY

The General Secretary shall:

6.6.1. Be the head of the Union's Secretariat

6.6.2. Convene, at the instance of the President, all Executive and Congress meetings of the Union.

6.6.3. Keep the records of the Union.

6.6.4. Compile and present report on the activities of the Union on a per semester basis to the Executives.

6.6.5. Carry out such duties as may be assigned to him/her from time to time by the President/Executive Council.

6.7. ASSISTANT GENERAL SECRETARY

The Assistant General Secretary shall:

6.7.1. Assist the General Secretary in all his/her duties and shall act in his/her absence.

6.7.2. Carry out any other duties as may be assigned to him/her by the President/Executive Council

6.7.3. Be the Secretary of the Year One (1) Orientation Planning Committee.

6.8. TREASURER

The Treasurer shall:

6.8.1. Receive all Union monies collected by the Director of Finance, Secretary or other sources.

6.8.2. Deposit all monies so received in the Union's account within 48 hours after such receipt.

6.8.3. Be responsible for the disbursement of the approved expenditure of the Union.

6.8.4. Be a signatory to the Union's account

6.8.5. Be responsible for keeping an imprest as may be approved by the Executive Council from time to time.

6.8.6. Submit all receipts, payment vouchers and the account balance of the Union to the Executive Council on monthly basis.

6.8.7. Hold the Union's chequebook and other bank documents, and handover same at the expiration of his/her tenure.

6.9. THE FINANCIAL SECRETARY

The Financial Secretary shall:

6.9.1. Keep record/account of all the income and expenditure of the Union.

6.9.2. Collect all monies due to the Union and issue receipts for such monies.

6.9.3. Be a signatory to the Unions Account in the absence of either the President or Treasurer.

6.10. DIRECTOR OF SOCIALS

The Director of Socials shall:

6.10.1. Co-ordinate all social activities of the Union such as Student Union Week.

6.10.2. Be in charge of the various musical and other entertainment instruments such as public address systems and see to their proper handling.

6.10.3. Be the Chairman of the Social Organizing Committee of the Union.

6.10.4. See to the proper welfare of all students in the Union.

6.10.5. Maintain a proper inventory of all Union properties and hand over same at the expiration of his/her tenure.

6.10.6. Maintain and account for all the Students Union buildings and shops to the Executive Council and the Senate on a per semester basis and at any other time on demand. This shall be done in conjunction with the Treasurer.

6.10.7. Be the Chairman of the Welfare Committee of the Union.

6.10.8. Co-ordinate all games and sporting activities of the Union.

6.10.9. Be the Chairman/Chairperson of the Sports Committee of the Union.

6.11.1. Present to the Executive Council programme of sporting activities for each academic session.

6.14. PUBLIC RELATIONS OFFICER

The Public Relations Officers shall:

6.14.1. Be the Chairman/Chairperson of the Publicity Committee and a member of the Union's Editorial Board.

6.14.2. Make press releases on behalf of the Union as approved by the Executive Council/President; and shall make copies of such release available to the Dean of Student Affairs

6.14.3. Be responsible for the production of the Student Union's Almanac, Periodicals.

6.14.4. Be in charge of maintaining peace and order during Executive Council, joint sessions, or meetings of the Union.

6.14.5. Work closely with the Chief Security Office (C.S.O) of the college in the discharge of his duties.

6.14.6. Be in charge of any property seized or confiscated from any erring officer, member or other relevant bodies.

ARTICLE 7

POWERS OF CONGRESS

7.1. The Congress shall be the highest decision-making organ of the Union.

7.2. The Congress shall be convened at least twice every semester.

7.3. Quorum for Congress - Quorum for Congress shall be deemed to have been constituted when at least two hundred (200) students from each department of the college are present.

7.4. The Congress shall ratify the budget and all key decisions of the Executive of the Union.

7.5. The Congress MUST approve all key decisions that affect the generality of the students such as Student Union dues and levies, approval of budget, declaration of protest against the institution or government at any level, etc.

7.5.1. An approval of any key decision by Congress shall be by two-thirds majority votes cast accredited students at a Congress duly convened.

7.6. All such decisions and actions not approved by the Congress shall be termed unconstitutional and illegal; such unconstitutional and illegal action(s) shall constitute gross misconduct.

7.7. The Congress shall receive a detailed statement of account of stewardship from the Executive at the end of tenure of office.

ARTICLE 8

REMOVAL AND RESIGNATION

8.1. The Executive Council or any member of the Council shall not be removed from office except by the vote of two third majorities of the entire Members of the Executive for stated misbehavior, inefficiency and incapacity OR any action that deviates from this constitution and College Rules

8.2. No Executive Officer of the union shall be removed except on the basis of gross misconduct that has been established by a Panel of Investigation. Such removal shall be ratified by Dean of Student Affairs.

8.3. Any Officer who has been removed from office may appeal to the executive Council if he/she feels the reason for the removal is contrary to the provision of the Constitution.

8.4. In the case of resignation or removal of the President, the Vice President shall be sworn in as President by the Dean of Student affairs within 24 hours. The Dean shall report same to the school authority within 24 hours; and shall in turn notify the Members of the Union within 48 hours.

8.5. All resignation shall be submitted to the Union President who shall notify the Members of the Union within 48hours.

8.6. Any officer(s) who has resigned or has been removed from office shall handover or submit all Union's property in his/her possession within 48 hours.

8.10. Any removal by the President shall be communicated to the affected Union Official through the Dean of Student Affairs.

ARTICLE 9

TENURE OF OFFICE

9.1. The tenure of office of all elected Officers of the Union shall be one Academic Session.

9.2. The Executive Council shall form the Union's Electoral Committee four (4) weeks before the expiration of the tenure, for the purpose of conducting fresh elections.

ARTICLE 10

MEETINGS

10.1. The Executive Council shall meet at least once (1) in a month. Emergency meetings may be convened when necessary. Meetings shall only hold outside lecture hours

10.2. Ad-hoc and Sub-committees may meet at their discretion but outside lecture hours.

10.3. A general meeting of the Union (Congress Meeting) shall be called at least twice (2) in every semester.

ARTICLE 11

ACCOUNTABILITY OF UNION OFFICERS

11.1. All officers of the Union shall be individually or jointly responsible for any acts of commission or omission perpetrated in the performance of their duties.

11.2. All offices shall be financially accountable for expenses incurred on behalf of the Union.

11.3. All officers must produce an annual report and account of stewardship to the Congress, without prejudice to Article 6.6.4

11.4. The Annual Report and account of stewardship of officers shall be presented at the first Congress of the Union after the elections.

ARTICLE 12

AUDIT OF ACCOUNT

12.1. Accounts of the Union shall be audited every semester by the Finance and Audit Committee of the Union.

12.2. Auditors will be entitled to a fee and the Union will refund of all expenses incurred by it. The fee or honorarium MUST be approved by the Executive for the work done by the Auditors.

12.3. The Audit Committee shall have power to require the Trustee to submit to them at a stated place, period and time, the accounts and records of the Union in their custody.

12.4. The Audit Committee shall have power to require the Executive Council of the Union and any other officer or member of the Union to submit to them written reports on any issue affecting the affairs of the Union, based on the auditors' terms of reference.

12.5. The Audit Committee shall have the power to require any of the persons in subsection (3) and (4) of this section to appear in person before them for the purpose of interrogation on, or clarification of, matters related to the affairs of the Union or on the Auditors' term of reference.

12.6. Auditors appointed or invited by the union shall be given written terms of reference and the conditions of their appointment.

12.7. The Audit Committee's report shall be submitted to the Union President and such audited account shall be sent to the Dean Student Affairs for information and necessary action

12.8. The Audit Committee's report and statement of account shall be published on Notice Boards.

ARTICLE 13

AFFILIATED CLUBS AND ASSOCIATIONS

13.1. Any Club or Association within the college with the aim of developing and promoting Student welfare and quality of life may affiliate with the Union.

13.2. The club or association who wish to affiliate with the Union shall apply in writing, enclosing its Constitution, a report of its activities and a fee of Three thousand naira (\mathbb{N} 3000) only or such amount that may be determined or approved from time to time.

13.3. The Club or Association shall provide the Union with its approved scheme of activities at the beginning of each session.

13.4. The Club or Association shall keep the Union informed of its officers from time to time.

13.5. The Club or Association so accepted and recognized by the Union shall have the privilege to use the Union's property and enjoy the Union's patronage or support.

13.6. The Club or Association shall be privileged to apply for grants by way of aid from the Union.

13.7. The Club or Association shall be renewed with the union annually with the fee of One thousand naira (\$1000) only or such amount that may be determined or approved from time to time.

ARTICLE 14

DEPARTMENTS

14.1. Students of the Union who are in the various Departments shall have the right to form their Associations at the departmental levels only.

14.2. There shall be only two (2) arms of administration at the Departmental level namely: the Executive and the Congress.

14.3. The Executive Council shall be responsible to students in the Departments and shall report on semester basis to the Departmental Congress.

14.6. Departmental Associations shall have the right to make bye laws for the smooth running of their administration. In the case of conflict between this Constitution and the bye laws of any Departmental Association, the provisions of this Constitution shall prevail.

ARTICLE 15

15.1. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

The finance of the Union shall be derived from:

15.1.1. The annual levy of every registered member as may be determined from time to time.

15.1.2. Any voluntary donation from corporate bodies and individuals.

15.1.3. The proceeds from Students Union activities.

15.1.4. The Union shall have no form of form investments.

15.1.5. Registration of affiliate Clubs and Associations

15.1.6. The Union shall NEVER borrow or loan money or items.

15.1.7. Revenues and monies received by the Union shall be paid into the Union's Bank account by the individual students. There shall be no cash payment. Acknowledgement of funds received will be by way of receipts issued by the financial secretary. Disbursement must be by payment vouchers by the Treasurer.

15.1.8. The Bank Account of the Union shall be operated by Trustees of the Union. Trustees shall include the President, Treasurer and the Dean of student affairs.

15.1.9. All vouchers and purchase orders on any capital project shall be duly scrutinized and counter-signed by the President and the Treasurer.

15.1.10. Application for grants in aid to affiliate clubs and associations shall be made on an application form obtained from the Treasurer.

15.1.11. The funds of the Union shall be disbursed according to the Annual Budget approved by the President, subject to the Dean approval.

15.1.12. Copies of the approved Annual Budgets of the Union shall be made available on request by the students of the union.

15.1.13. Supplementary budget can be submitted when the need arises and shall be approved by two third majorities of the students of the Executive.

15.1.14. All financial applications and withdrawals of the Union's fund shall be subject to the approval of the Dean of Student Affairs.

ARTICLE 16

COMMITTEES

16.1. AD HOC COMMITTEE: The Executive Council shall have powers to set up Ad-hoc Committee. This shall be widely advertised and shall not duplicate the standing Committees.

17.2. STANDING COMMITTEE: There shall be the following standing Committees of the Union.

17.3.1. The Standing Committees are – Director of Social, Public Relations Officers, and Security. These Committees shall be headed by the respective Directors and comprised of five (5) other students to be appointed by the Executive and approved by the Dean of Student Affairs.

ARTICLE 17

SPECIAL COMMITTEE

18.1. STUDENT UNION WEEK PLANNING COMMITTEE

17.1.1. The Student Union Week Planning Committee shall be formed by the Executive Council and approved by the Dean of Student affairs.

17.1.2. Students of the Committee shall be drawn from each College/Department. The Committee shall be headed by the Director of Socials of the Union.

17.1.3. The Committee shall be responsible for organizing the entire activities of the Student Week.

17.2. EDITORIAL BOARD

17.2.1. The Editorial Board shall comprise an Adviser, who shall be a member of the college Academic Staff, the Public Relations Officers, an Editor, and such other persons as may be deemed appropriate.

17.2.2. The students of the Board shall be appointed by the Executive Council.

17.2.3. The Editor-in-Chief and Secretary of the board shall be appointed by the President.

17.2.4. The Treasurer of the Union shall take charge of the funds of the Board.

17.2.5. The Board shall have powers to publish the Union's Magazine and other publications. It shall ensure a high standard of publication.

ARTICLE 18

ELECTION/BYE ELECTION OF THE UNION

18.1. The General Election of the Union shall hold in every Second Semester in a session in the week during the Student Union Week on a date to be fixed by the Dean of Student Affairs and Electoral Committee.

18.2. The General Election of the various Departmental Associations in the college shall be held in every first semester in a session within six weeks of resumption of every session, on a date to be fixed as in 19.1 above.

18.3. Vacancies occurring in any of the elections shall be filled in a bye election to be conducted within 3 weeks after the general election.

18.4. Subject to the provisions of this section, elections for the Union shall be carried out in the way and manner set down in the electoral regulations and guidelines in Article 20.

ARTICLE 19

ELECTORAL REGULATIONS/GUIDELINES

19.1. There shall be an Electoral Committee for the Union which shall consist of one (1) representative from each Department. The leadership of the Student Union (Executive) after consulting the Dean of Student Affairs shall appoint the Electoral Committee Members.

19.2. There shall be a voters register a month before election.

19.3. There shall be voters accreditation on the day of election. As soon after a person is accredited he/she goes to vote.

19.4. As soon as the voting is done the votes shall be counted.

19.5. As soon as the counting is done; election results shall announce by the electoral Chairman.

19.6. The Dean, Student Affairs shall advice the Union on the appointment of Electoral Committee Chairman/Chairperson and Secretary from among the Electoral Committee students.

19.7. The students of the Armed Forces in the college and other security personnel shall be in charge of the security during the elections.

19.8. The conduct of the General Election and bye elections of the Union shall be vested in the Electoral Committee.

19.9. Officers of the Union shall be elected on individual candidacy.

19.10. Election shall be by secret ballot executed by the physical casting of the ballot paper or casting by electronic means. In any election year, the DSA shall decide which of the method is suitable depending on the exigencies of the time.

19.11. Election shall be held within twelve (12) days but not earlier than three (3) days after the close of nomination.

19.12. Election petition shall be filled to the Electoral Committee not later than seven (7) days after elections.

19.13. The Electoral Committee shall have the power to make rules and regulations to ensure orderliness and good conduct in elections and during electioneering campaigns.

19.14. Any candidate who contravenes any section of any rule made under any section(s) of these regulations and guidelines in this Article shall have his candidacy nullified.

19.15. The Union shall be responsible for all expenditure pertaining to the conduct of the election.

19.16. All candidates must undergo security vetting, and be cleared by the Security Unit of the college from studentship of any student or external cult group, or any criminal behaviour.

DEPARTMENT ZONNING OF ELECTION

19.13. There shall be an interdepartmental zoning for special electoral positions such as President, Vice President, General Secretary I, Financial Secretary, Treasurer and Auditor made interchangeably per each new election tenure.

19.14. General Secretary II, Public Relation Officers I and II and Director of Social shall be the general electoral positions.

ELIGIBILITY FOR ELECTION

19.15. Any person who wishes to contest for any position of leadership in the Students Union must be a valid registered student in the college. And in the following year when he/she is expected to handover, a student who does not handover properly will face a disciplinary action by the college.

19.15.1. No student shall qualify for election as an officer of the Union if such a student:

19.15.2. Is on disciplinary suspension by the Union and or the college that is inimical to the peace and order in the college

19.15.3. Has a Cumulative Grade Point Average (CGPA) of not less than 3.50.

19.15.4. Is on academic suspension.

19.15.5. Has been found guilty of any form of examination malpractice.

ARTICLE 20

STAFF ADVISER

20.1. There shall be a Staff Adviser to the Union who shall be elected by the Executive of the Union after due consultation with the Dean of Student Affairs, and approved by the provost.

20.2. The Staff Adviser shall be an academic staff who has been a former student leader, a former Dean of Students Affairs, or any academic staff with proven records of advocating and supporting student courses.

20.3. Any person so appointed shall give such advice as the Executive Council may from time to time require.

20.4. The Staff Adviser shall have a tenure of two years in the first instance and a maximum tenure of four years.

20.5. The Staff Adviser shall cease to hold office when a motion for his/her removal has been passed and approved by the votes of two third majority of students of the Executive or such person resigns his post.

ARTICLE 21

AMENDMENT

21.1. Written notice of any motion to amend the Constitution, with the suggested amendment stated in precise terms and signed by the movers and seconded, and sent to the Union President through the General Secretary.

21.2. The Union President shall ensure a copy of the proposed amendment is pasted on the Notice Boards of the various College/ Department within 48hours of its receipt.

21.3. A copy of the proposed amendment of the Constitution shall be presented to the Dean of Student Affairs.

21.4. No amendment to this Constitution shall be valid unless it is passed by a two third majority of the entire studentship of the Union's Executive. Such amendment (s) shall become operative following the approval of the college Dean of Student Affairs and the Provost.

ARTICLE 22

CITATION

22.1 This Constitution shall be cited as the Constitution of the Student Union, Makurdi College of Health and Medical Laboratory Science and expressly repeals the formed Constitution of the Student Union, Makurdi College of health and medical laboratory science.

CONSTITUTION DRAFTING COMMITTEE

- 1. IORHENAKAA MOSES
- 2. YUA NICODEMUS
- **3. TERKULA TERNGU**
- 4. AONDONA EPHRAIM
- 5. ABANG CECILIA ALING

6. MWAKYORGA GREGORY AONDOUNGWA

- 7. AZA TERLUMUN
- 8. IORLUMUN MSUGHTER DANIEL

OATH OF OFFICE OF THE EXECUTIVE COUNCIL

I,______ do solemnly swear that I will be faithful and bear true allegiance to the Students' Union, Makurdi College of Health and Medical Laboratory Science Campus. I will discharge my duties to the best of my ability, faithfully and in accordance with the constitution of the Students' Union Government of this great institution, and the law and always in the interest of the integrity and solidarity, well being and prosperity of the College; that I will not allow my personal interest to influence my official conduct or my official decisions; that I will do the best of my ability preserve, protect and defend the constitution of the Students' Union, to all students according to law without fear or favour; that I will not directly or indirectly communicate or reveal to any person any matter which shall be brought under my consideration or shall become known to me as ________except as may be required for the due discharge of my duties. So help me God.

Signature of the official

REWIEW/AMENDMENT OF THE CONSTITUTION

The constitution has been amended as follows;

- The president shall be given an allowance of N10,000 naira monthly, his/her vice shall be paid N6,000 naira per month, and all other EXCO shall be paid same amount of N5,000 monthly or such amount that maybe determined or approved from time to time. The money will come from the Union dues and this must be included in the Annual Budget and approved by the Congress.
- The union body shall be in-charge of its financial documents and all payments. Financial reports must be given to the Dean of Student Affairs on monthly basis.
- 3. No association / club dues shall be more than the students union dues
- 4. Every association/club is mandated to present minutes of their meeting to the Union EXCO and the Dean of Student Affairs.
- Every Union, association or club must present a copy of her constitution to the Union EXCO and the Dean of Student Affairs
- 6. Every student MUST download a copy of the college handbook free of charge on the College website; address of which will be obtained from the Registrar
- 7. Every student is mandated to have a copy of the college union's constitution which is available for free download from the College website.

CONSTITUTION REVIEW COMMITEE

S/no	Names	Post
1.	Comr.Kperai K. Ely	President
2.	Comr. Atsem T. Philip	Vice President
3.	Comr. Aondoaver F Austin	General secretary 1
4.	Comr. Belete K. Kenneth	General secretary 2
5.	Comr. Anbua Precious	Treasurer
6	Comr. Mende A. Daniel	Financial Secretary
7.	Comr. Ihuah Solomon	Auditor
8.	Comr. Atojime A. Damian	Director of Social & welfare
9.	Comr. Mbalu S. Shadrach	Public Relation officer1
10.	Comr. Awuhe John	Public Relation officer2
11	Mr. Bam Adeke	Provost (Co-opted) Member

President

Provost